
 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at the 

meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the public 
except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter during a 

public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them 

to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the 
ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable 

accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 1 of 1 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Agenda 

Tuesday, October 19, 2021 ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

2. Approval of Agenda 

3. Invocation - Pastor David Wofford, Eatonton First United Methodist Church 

4. Pledge of Allegiance (staff) 

 

Zoning Public Hearing 
5. Request by Rick McAllister, agent for Featherfield LLC, for conditional use on Old Phoenix Road [Map 

104, Parcel 002, District 3] (staff-P&D) 

 

Regular Business Meeting 
6. Public Comments 

7. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - October 1, 2021 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Approval of Minutes - October 1, 2021 Work Session (staff-CC) 

c. Approval of Minutes - October 12, 2021 Joint Called Meeting (staff-CC) 

d. Authorization for Chairman to sign GDOT Actual Cost Utility Agreement (staff-CM) 

e. Authorization for Chairman to sign GDOT Title VI Plan Update for Putnam County Transit (staff-

Tran) 

f. Authorization for Chairman to sign GDOT 5311 Grant Application for Putnam County Transit (staff-

Tran) 

8. Authorization for Chairman to sign Letter of Support for Goodwill of Middle Georgia’s American 

Rescue Plan Act Grant Application (staff-CM) 

9. Authorization for Chairman to sign Intergovernmental Agreement with the Hospital Authority (staff-CM 

& Fin) 

10. Approval of Changes to the Putnam County Financial Policy (BW and staff-Fin) 

11. Discussion and possible action concerning Electric Vehicle Charging Station (BW) 

 

Reports/Announcements 
12. County Manager Report 

13. County Attorney Report 

14. Commissioner Announcements 

 

Closing 
15. Adjournment 

1



File Attachments for Item:

5. Request by Rick McAllister, agent for Featherfield LLC, for conditional use on Old Phoenix Road [Map 

104, Parcel 002, District 3] (staff-P&D)

2



Request by Rick McAllister, agent for Featherfield LLC, for conditional use on Old Phoenix Road. [Map 
104, Parcel 002, District 3].  

 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT-LISA JACKSON STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 
The applicants are requesting a conditional use to establish a rustic, farm style event venue. The parent parcel 
consists of 24.61 acres and is presently zoned AG-1 which allows event centers as a conditional use. The applicant 

is proposing to subdivide 7.12 acres of the 24.61 to establish the event venue. The proposed use will entail a barn 
style event center, an open-air chapel, one residential dwelling unit, and parking area.  The applicants plan to grow 

flowers, vegetables, harvest honey and gather eggs to be sold at the local farmer’s market. The project will have 
open green spaces, designated play areas, and hands on gardening. Having a ‘give back’ approach, they plan to 
host local events, that will help bring tourism into Putnam County and to the surrounding restaurants, marinas, and 

local attractions. 
 

This property is located directly across the road from an R-1R subdivision on Wards Chapel Road. However, there is 
an existing natural buffer that runs parallel to Wards Chapel Road along the R-1R property. If approved, staff 
recommends that a 25-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer is established along Wards Chapel Road to minimize the 

noise associated with events. The adjoining properties are all zoned agriculture consisting of 20 acres or greater. 
The closest dwelling unit on an adjacent property is approximately 437 feet to the property line and the proposed 

use should have very little to no adverse effect on the property. However, staff recommends that a 25-foot 
undisturbed vegetated buffer is established along the property line adjacent to map 104, parcel 024. This property 

also abuts the Wards Chapel Church Cemetery located on map 104, parcel 001. Therefore, staff recommends that a 
25-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer be established along that property line. As stated in Sec. 66-72 (a) Allowed 
Uses, zoning AG-1 allows for the following: Animal care (general), event venue (conditional use only), farmer’s 

market, recreation (outdoor), and religious facilities. By implementing the required conditions, the proposed project 
should have minimal impact on the adjacent properties, roads, and nearby intersections, thus creating a welcomed 

addition to Putnam County.  

3



 

4



 

5



 
Staff recommendations is for approval of the proposed conditional use located on Old Phoenix Road, and 

identified as Map 104, Part of Parcel 002 with the following conditions: 
 

1. This conditional use approval shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation in the 
Superior Court of Putnam County of an accurate plat within 60 days of approval by the board of 
commissioners.  A copy of the recorded plat shall be filed with the planning and development 

department director. Failure to file a plat pursuant to this subsection shall have the effect of 
invalidating the rezoning action as stated in Section 66-165(e)(3) of the Putnam County Code 

of Ordinances. 
2. A 25-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer must be established along Wards Chapel Road and 

along the property lines that abut Map 104, Parcel 001 and Map 104, Parcel 024. 

3. The uses allowed under the conditional use shall be limited to those that conform with a barn 
style (event venue), open air chapel, parking, a residential dwelling and any other use or 

accessory use allowed within AG-1. 
4. Hours of operation shall not exceed 11:00pm Monday-Thursday and 1:00am on the weekends. 
5. Owners shall present a parking plan, prepared by a design professional which shall be 

approved by the Planning Director and executed prior to the issuance of a business 
registration. 

 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation is for approval of the proposed conditional use located on Old 

Phoenix Road, and identified as Map 104, Part of Parcel 002 with the following conditions: 
 

1. This conditional use approval shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation in the Superior 
Court of Putnam County of an accurate plat within 60 days of approval by the board of commissioners.  A 
copy of the recorded plat shall be filed with the planning and development department director. Failure to 

file a plat pursuant to this subsection shall have the effect of invalidating the rezoning action as stated in 
Section 66-165(e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

2. A 25-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer must be established along Wards Chapel Road and along the 
property lines that abut Map 104, Parcel 001 and Map 104, Parcel 024. 

6



3. The uses allowed under the conditional use shall be limited to those that conform with a barn style (event 
venue), open air chapel, parking, a residential dwelling and any other use or accessory use allowed within 

AG-1. 
4. Hours of operation shall not exceed 11:00pm Monday-Thursday and 1:00am on the weekends. 

5. Owners shall present a parking plan, prepared by a design professional which shall be approved by the 
Planning Director and executed prior to the issuance of a business registration. 

 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES: 

 
The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on Thursday, October 7, 2021 at 
6:30 PM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 

 
Present:  Alan Foster, Martha Farley, Maurice Hill, Harold Jones (not eligible to vote), John Mitchell  

Staff Present:  Lisa Jackson, Courtney Andrews and Angie Larson 
 
Request by Rick McAllister, agent for Featherfield LLC for conditional use on Old Phoenix Road. [Map 104, 

Parcel 002, District 3]. * Mr. Rick McAllister represented this request. He explained that the proposed 
conditional use parcel is located on historic Scenic Loop Three,  at the intersection of Old Phoenix and Wards 

Chapel. It includes the original site of Baldwin County Courthouse, also the Wards Chapel Church Cemetery, and the 
Alice Walker driving tour. If approved, the applicant feels that this project can become one of the county’s “Stop, 

Look, and See places”. He added that it could expand cultural opportunities and agricultural experiences. The 
proposed event venue, will include an open chapel and barn, to hold weddings and festival-related events. The area 
for the conditional use is approximately 7 acres of a 24-acre parcel. They would also like to add a small provision 

market to one of the proposed buildings, which will be utilized by the guests on the site. Mr. McAllister stated that 
Featherfield will be a natural farm-like setting designed for the guest to enjoy nature and retreat from their busy 

lives. He explained that each parcel divided in the AG zoning must be at least 5 acres. They are requesting more 
than the 5 acres due to any unforeseen design constraints. The applicants are proposing a 25-foot buffer on both 
the Wards Chapel roadside and the adjacent residential property. Mr. McAllister indicated that event venues are 

included in the AG zoning with a conditional use permit.  
Member Hill asked for an outline some of the additional uses. Mr. McAllister responded that owners are going to 

subdivide the parent parcel into agricultural lots per the AG zoning code requirements. He explained that they would 
have a pond, an onsite farmers market, and agricultural tracts for gardening. In addition, the owners plan to 
incorporate stormwater utilization for irrigation purposes. This project will give guests the opportunity to escape 

their “city life” and enjoy nature for the weekend. Member Jones asked where parking and the entrance into the 

7



project would be located. Mr. McAllister stated that all parking would be on the site having one main entrance onto 
the property.  

 
Chairman Foster requested a maximum number of attendees for an event due to occasions where 200-300 people 

were anticipated, but 1500 attended. Mr. McAllister explained that each event dictates the attendees. However, it 
is not the owners' intention to have large-scale concerts or festivals. In the case of a big events, they would rent 
the necessary facilities to use on a temporary basis for accommodation.  

 
The following people spoke in favor of the request and were given 3 minutes each. 

 
Robert Murphy 
Louise Murphy 

Kathy Wardlaw 
 

Mr. McAllister is working with the fire chief to install adequate fire protection. He explained that the 
provision store will be more of a pantry for the guests of the property. He stated that the traffic would be looked at 
more with the preliminary plat application. This would give them a better idea of what Wards Chapel is currently 

rated and how much traffic can be put in that area. He explained that the hours of operation could differ for the 
weekends. They will have individual wells located on the property that will help supplement the pond and dwelling 

units. Member Mitchell asked if there could be a limitation to hold the wedding events solely on the weekend to 
help prevent traffic. Mr. Robert Murphy (owner of Featherfield, LLC) stated that they would not envision a 

wedding event consisting of more than 150 people. Chairman Foster asked if there was a maximum number of 
guests that they wouldn’t exceed. Mrs. Louise Murphy (owner of Featherfield, LLC) stated that they are looking to 
have an intimate venue. The maximum at a wedding wouldn’t exceed more than 200 guests. In the event of having 

1,500 guests, it would be a ticketed event and limited to the parking availability. She added that her ideal number 
for a wedding would be 130 guests. Chairman Foster stated that he wanted a maximum number to prevent 

having 1,000 guests. Mrs. Murphy stated that she had not done a lot of research but would not want more than 
200 guests nor does she want wedding scheduled every weekend. Member Farley stated that she visited the site 
and was very impressed with the concept of a getaway.  

 
Staff recommendation is for approval of the proposed conditional use located on Old Phoenix Road, and 

identified as Map 104, Part of Parcel 002 with the following conditions: 
 

1. This conditional use approval shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation in the 

Superior Court of Putnam County of an accurate plat within 60 days of approval by the board of 

8



commissioners.  A copy of the recorded plat shall be filed with the planning and development 
department director. Failure to file a plat pursuant to this subsection shall have the effect of 

invalidating the rezoning action as stated in Section 66-165(e)(3) of the Putnam County Code 
of Ordinances. 

2. A 25-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer must be established along Wards Chapel Road and 
along the property lines that abut Map 104, Parcel 001 and Map 104, Parcel 024. 

3. The uses allowed under the conditional use shall be limited to those that conform with a barn 

style (event venue), open air chapel, parking, a residential dwelling and any other use or 
accessory use allowed within AG-1. 

4. Hours of operation shall not exceed 1:00am. 
5. Owners shall present a parking plan, prepared by a design professional which shall be 

approved by the Planning Director and executed prior to the issuance of a business 

registration. 
 

Motion to approve the request by Rick McAllister, agent for Featherfield LLC for conditional use on Old Phoenix 
Road identified as Map 104 Part of Parcel 002 with the following conditions: 
 

1. This conditional use approval shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation in the 
Superior Court of Putnam County of an accurate plat within 60 days of approval by the board of 

commissioners.  A copy of the recorded plat shall be filed with the planning and development 
department director. Failure to file a plat pursuant to this subsection shall have the effect of 

invalidating the rezoning action as stated in Section 66-165(e)(3) of the Putnam County Code 
of Ordinances. 

2. A 25-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer must be established along Wards Chapel Road and 

along the property lines that abut Map 104, Parcel 001 and Map 104, Parcel 024. 
3. The uses allowed under the conditional use shall be limited to those that conform with a barn 

style (event venue), open air chapel, parking, a residential dwelling and any other use or 
accessory use allowed within AG-1. 

4. Hours of operation shall not exceed 11:00pm Monday-Thursday and 1:00am on the weekends. 

5. Owners shall present a parking plan, prepared by a design professional which shall be 
approved by the Planning Director and executed prior to the issuance of a business 

registration. 
 
Motion made by Member Hill, seconded by Member Farley. 

Voting Yea: Member Hill, Member Farley, Member Mitchell, Chairman Foster 

9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



File Attachments for Item:

7. Consent Agenda

a. Approval of Minutes - October 1, 2021 Regular Meeting (staff-CC)

b. Approval of Minutes - October 1, 2021 Work Session (staff-CC)

c. Approval of Minutes - October 12, 2021 Joint Called Meeting (staff-CC)

d. Authorization for Chairman to sign GDOT Actual Cost Utility Agreement (staff-CM)

e. Authorization for Chairman to sign GDOT Title VI Plan Update for Putnam County Transit (staff-Tran)

f. Authorization for Chairman to sign GDOT 5311 Grant Application for Putnam County Transit (staff-

Tran)

28



Draft Minutes Page 1 of 4  

October 1, 2021   

 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Minutes 

Friday, October 1, 2021 ◊ 9:00 AM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Friday, October 1, 2021 at approximately 

9:00 AM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, 

Eatonton, Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Billy Webster 

Commissioner Gary McElhenney 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Bill Sharp 

Commissioner Jeff Wooten 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Attorney Barry Fleming 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

Chairman Webster called the meeting to order at approximately 9:01 a.m. 

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

2. Approval of Agenda 

Motion to approve the Agenda. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner McElhenney. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 
 

3. Invocation 

Commissioner Sharp gave the invocation. 

 

4. Pledge of Allegiance (staff) 

County Manager Van Haute led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

 

29



Draft Minutes Page 2 of 4  

October 1, 2021   

 

5. Special Presentation 

a. Tri-County EMC and Tri-CoGo 

Mr. Greg Mullis, Chief Operating Officer for Tri-CoGo, presented a PowerPoint briefing on Tri-

County EMC’s Broadband Project and requested a letter of support from Putnam County for 

Georgia broadband grant application and local financial support to extend fiber broadband to 

non-EMC locations in Putnam County. 

(Copy of presentation made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

b. EPWSA / ESG 

Mr. John Nix, Attorney for EPWSA/ESG, explained plans to apply for state Recovery funds in 

the amount of $6M.  They would like to include a plan for matching funds with the application to 

include a $2M match from EPWSA and $1M from the city and county ($400K from city and 

$600K from county). 

Mr. Trey Gavin, Vice President for ESG Operations, reviewed the application parameters and 

criteria and reviewed the proposed projects. 

 

Regular Business Meeting 
6. Public Comments 

None 

 

7. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - September 21, 2021 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 
 

8. Authorization for Chairman to sign Letter of Support for Tri-County EMC’s Broadband 

Infrastructure Grant Application (staff-CM) 

Motion to authorize the Chairman to sign a letter of support for Tri-County EMC's 

Broadband Infrastructure Grant Application. 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 

(Copy of letter made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

9. Discussion and possible action regarding EPWSA / ESG presentation and matching funds for 

the ARP grant (BS) 

Motion for Putnam County to designate $150K for four years to go toward matching funds 

for the state ARPA grant for EPWSA. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Brown. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 

 

30



Draft Minutes Page 3 of 4  

October 1, 2021   

 

10. Authorization for Chairman to sign Letter of Support for Golden Harvest Food Bank’s 

American Rescue Plan Act Grant Application (BW/DB) 

Motion to authorize the Chairman to sign a letter of support for Golden Harvest Food 

Bank's American Rescue Plan Act Grant Application. 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 

(Copy of letter made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

11. Approval of 2021-2022 Contract with the Eatonton-Putnam Chamber of Commerce (staff-

CC) 

Motion to approve the 2021-2022 Contract with the Eatonton-Putnam Chamber of 

Commerce. 

Motion made by Commissioner Wooten, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 

(Copy of contract made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

12. Awarding of Solicitation 21-42001-006 Signing & Pavement Marking Upgrades (staff-CM & 

CC) 

County Manager Van Haute reviewed the bids and advised that the lowest bidder did not meet 

the terms of the project. 

Motion to award Solicitation 21-42001-006 Signing & Pavement Marking Upgrades to Peek 

Pavement Markings at $241,661.50. 

Motion made by Commissioner Brown, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 
 

13. Approval of Putnam County Policy and Procedure Manual Update (staff-HR) 

Motion to approve the Putnam County Policy and Procedure Manual Update related to 

COVID-19. 

Motion made by Commissioner Wooten, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 

(Copy of update made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to __________.) 

 

Reports/Announcements 
14. County Manager Report 

County Manager Van Haute reported that Breast Cancer Awareness month is October and lots of 

activities are scheduled: decorated pumpkins are in each department, doors in the Admin 

Building have been decorated by the high school students and commissioners need to judge them 

by October 19th, and there will be a chili cookoff on October 7th. 

 

15. County Attorney Report 

No report. 

31



Draft Minutes Page 4 of 4  

October 1, 2021   

 

 

16. Commissioner Announcements 

Commissioner McElhenney: none 

 

Commissioner Brown: none 

 

Commissioner Sharp: thanked the board for the vote on the EPWSA grant 

 

Commissioner Wooten: none 

 

Chairman Webster: none 

 

Closing 
17. Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 10:50 a.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Billy Webster 

County Clerk       Chairman 

32



Draft Work Session Minutes Page 1 of 2  

October 1, 2021   

 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Work Session 

Minutes 

Friday, October 1, 2021 ◊ 1:30 PM 

Baldwin County Government Building 

1601 North Columbia Street 

Conference / Training B 

Milledgeville, GA  31061 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met for a Work Session on Friday, October 1, 

2021 at approximately 1:30 PM in the Baldwin County Government Building, 1601 North 

Columbia Street, Conference / Training B, Milledgeville, Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Billy Webster 

Commissioner Gary McElhenney 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Bill Sharp 

Commissioner Jeff Wooten 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Attorney Barry Fleming 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

OTHERS PRESENT 

Consultant Mr. Doug Eaves 

 

 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 

Chairman Webster called the Work Session to order at approximately 2:06 p.m. and turned it 

over to our attorney's consultant, Mr. Doug Eaves. 

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

33



Draft Work Session Minutes Page 2 of 2  

October 1, 2021   

 

Regular Business Meeting 
2. Local Option Sales Tax Discussion 

Mr. Eaves gave a presentation on the Local Option Sales Tax which included: a history of LOST, 

the purpose of LOST, the renegotiation process, the LOST expiration date, the impact of the 

expiration of LOST, uniformity and equity, changes since the last negotiations, historic and 

future trends, the digest growth, changes to the cost of services, 2030 trend, the total tax burden 

and metrics used for the distribution formula. 

 

 

The meeting recessed at approximately 3:50 p.m. 

The meeting reconvened at approximately 3:57 p.m. 

 

 

Chairman Webster reminded everyone that the first joint meeting with the City Council was on 

October 12th at 1:00 p.m.  The board discussed the presentation to be made at the joint meeting 

and possible figures for the distribution percentages. 

 

No action was taken. 

 

Closing 
3. Adjournment 

Chairman Webster adjourned the Work Session at approximately 4:54 p.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Billy Webster 

County Clerk       Chairman 

34



Draft Joint Called Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 2  

October 12, 2021   

 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Joint Called Meeting 

Putnam County Board of Commissioners 

Eatonton City Council 

Minutes 

Tuesday, October 12, 2021 ◊ 1:00 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met with the Eatonton City Council on Tuesday, 

October 12, 2021 at approximately 1:00 PM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 

Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 

 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT  

Chairman Billy Webster 

Commissioner Gary McElhenney 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Bill Sharp 

Commissioner Jeff Wooten 

 

COUNTY STAFF PRESENT 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT 

Mayor John Reid  

Mayor Pro Tem Chip Walker 

Councilwoman Marie Rainey 

Councilwoman Teresa Doster 

Councilman James Gorley 

Councilwoman Janie Reid 

Councilman Bill Mangum 

 

CITY STAFF PRESENT 

City Attorney Chris Huskins 

City Administrator Gary Sanders 

Consultant Phil Sutton 

 

 

 

 

35



Draft Joint Called Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 2  

October 12, 2021   

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

Chairman Webster called the joint meeting to order at approximately 1:02 p.m. and welcomed 

everyone and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

Mayor Reid also welcomed everyone and made opening remarks regarding criteria of the Local 

Option Sales Tax distribution. 

 

Joint Called Meeting 
2. Local Option Sales Tax Discussion 

Chairman Webster made a PowerPoint presentation. 

 

Mr. Phil Sutton made a PowerPoint presentation. 

 

Mayor Reid and Chairman Webster agreed that smaller groups for negotiations will work 

best.  Chairman Webster proposed two elected officials and one staff per side and Mayor Reid 

concurred. 

 

Chairman Webster advised that the county will provide their initial proposal after the 

adjournment of today's meeting. 

 

No action was taken. 

(Copy of presentations made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

Closing 
3. Adjournment 

Chairman Webster thanked everyone for attending and adjourned the meeting at approximately 

1:29 p.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Billy Webster 

County Clerk       Chairman 

36



37



38



39



40



58-6000878

41



Lynn Butterworth

19th October 21

Lynn Butterworth

19th October

21

42



October 19 21

Putnam County Board of Commissioners

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A, Eatonton, GA  31024

Chairman

43



/ 15

49222 October 17, 2010

Putnam County Board of Commissioners

Billy Webster Chairman

October 19, 2021

44



 
 

 
 

 

Putnam County Transit 

 

 

 

Title VI Plan 

Date Adopted: Month/Day/Year 

45



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit i 

Title VI Plan Activity Log 

Date Activity 
(Review/Update/Addendum/ 

Adoption/Distribution) 

Concerned Person 
(Signature) 

Remarks 

12/16/2014                   Adoption  
Title VI Plan GDOT 

approval 

6/20/2019                  Review  
Title Vl Plan GDOT 

approval 

7/5/2019                  Adoption  
Title Vl Plan GDOT 

approval 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 

  

46



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit ii 

Title VI Plan Activity Log 
(Continued) 

Date Activity 
(Review/Update/Addendum/ 

Adoption/Distribution) 

Concerned Person 
(Signature) 

Remarks 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 

47



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit iii 

Table of Contents 

1.0 Title VI/Nondiscrimination Policy Statement  
 and Management Commitment to Title VI Plan ........................................................... 1-1 

2.0 Introduction & Description of Services ........................................................................ 2-1 

2.1 First Time Applicant Requirements ....................................................................................... 2-2 
2.2 Annual Certifications and Assurances.................................................................................... 2-3 
2.3 Title VI Plan Concurrence and Adoption ................................................................................ 2-3 

3.0 Title VI Notice to the Public ........................................................................................ 3-1 

3.1 Notice to Public ...................................................................................................................... 3-1 
3.2 Notice Posting Locations ........................................................................................................ 3-1 

4.0 Title VI Procedures and Compliance ............................................................................ 4-1 

4.1 Complaint Procedure ............................................................................................................. 4-1 
4.2 Complaint Form ..................................................................................................................... 4-1 
4.3 Record Retention and Reporting Policy ................................................................................. 4-2 
4.4 Sub-recipient Assistance and Monitoring .............................................................................. 4-2 
4.5 Contractors and Subcontractors ............................................................................................ 4-2 

5.0 Title VI Investigations, Complaints, and Lawsuits ........................................................ 5-4 

6.0 Public Participation Plan ............................................................................................. 6-1 

7.0 Language Assistance Plan ........................................................................................... 7-1 

8.0 Transit Planning and Advisory Bodies .......................................................................... 8-1 

9.0 Title VI Equity Analysis ................................................................................................ 9-1 

10.0 System-Wide Service Standards and Service Policies ................................................. 10-1 

10.1 Service Standards ........................................................................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 
10.2 Service Policies ............................................................................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 

11.0 Appendices ............................................................................................................... 11-2 

 

APPENDIX A FTA CIRCULAR 4702.1B REPORTING REQUIREMENTS FOR TRANSIT PROVIDERS 
APPENDIX B CURRENT SYSTEM DESCRIPTION 
APPENDIX C TITLE VI PLAN ADOPTION MEETING MINUTES AND GDOT CONCURRENCE LETTER  
APPENDIX D TITLE VI NOTICE TO PUBLIC 
APPENDIX E TITLE VI COMPLAINT FORM 
APPENDIX F PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PLAN 
APPENDIX G LANGUAGE ASSISTANCE PLAN 
APPENDIX H OPERATING AREA LANGUAGE DATA: PUTNAM COUNTY TRANSIT SERVICE AREA 
APPENDIX I DEMOGRAPHIC MAPS 
APPENDIX J TITLE VI EQUITY ANALYSIS 
 
 

48



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit 1-1 

1.0 Title VI/Nondiscrimination Policy Statement and Management 
Commitment to Title VI Plan 

 
 
Putnam County Transit assures the Georgia Department of Transportation that no person shall on the 

basis of race, color, or national origin, as provided by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Federal Transit 

Laws, 49 CFR Part 21 Unlawful Discrimination, Nondiscrimination In Federally-Assisted Programs Of The 

Department Of Transportation and as per written guidance under FTA Circular 4702.1B, dated October 

2012, be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to 

discrimination or retaliation under any program or activity undertaken by the agency.  

Putnam County Transit further agrees to the following responsibilities with respect to its programs and 

activities: 

1. Designate a Title VI Liaison that has a responsible position within the organization and access to the 

recipient’s Chief Executive Officer or authorized representative.  

2. Issue a policy statement signed by the Executive Director or authorized representative, which expresses its 

commitment to the nondiscrimination provisions of Title VI. The policy statement shall be circulated 

throughout the Recipient’s organization and to the general public. Such information shall be published 

where appropriate in language other than English.  

3. Insert the clauses of Section 4.5 of this plan into every contract subject to the Acts and the Regulations.  

4. Develop a complaint process and attempt to resolve complaints of discrimination against Putnam County 

Transit.  

5. Participate in training offered on the Title VI and other nondiscrimination requirements. 

6. If reviewed by GDOT or any other state or federal regulatory agency, take affirmative actions to correct any 

deficiencies found within a reasonable time period, not to exceed ninety (90) days. 

7. Have a process to collect racial and ethnic data on persons impacted by the agency’s programs. 

8. Submit the information required by FTA Circular 4702.1B to the GDOT. (refer to Appendix A of this plan) 

THIS ASSURANCE is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all federal funds, 

grants, loans, contracts, properties, discounts or other federal financial assistance under all programs and 

activities and is binding. The person whose signature appears below is authorized to sign this assurance 

on behalf of the agency.  

Signature: 

Printed Name:   Billy Webster 
Chairman, Putnam County Board of Commissioners, Date: __________________ 

49 CFR Part 21.7(a): Every application for Federal financial assistance to which this part applies shall 

contain, or be accompanied by, an assurance that the program will be conducted or the facility 

operated in compliance with all requirements imposed or pursuant to [49 CFR Part 21].  

 

49



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit 2-1 

2.0 Introduction & Description of Services 

 
Putnam County Transit submits this Title VI Plan in compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 

49 CFR Part 21, and the guidelines of FTA Circular 4702.1B, published October 1, 2012.  

 Putnam County Transit is a sub-recipient of FTA funds and provides service in Putnam County. A 

description of the current Putnam County Transit system is included in Appendix B.  

Title VI Liaison  

Dianne Pounds, Transit Director 

Putnam County Board of commissioners 

706-485-6355 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A, Eatonton, Georgia 31024 

Alternate Title VI Contact 

Paul Van Haute, County Manger 

Putnam County Board of Commissioners 

709-485-5826 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A, Eatonton, Georgia 31024 

 Putnam County Transit must designate a liaison for Title VI issues and complaints within the organization. 

The liaison is the focal point for Title VI implementation and monitoring of activities receiving federal 

financial assistance. Key responsibilities of the Title VI Liaison include: 

 Maintain knowledge of Title VI requirements.  

 Attend training on Title VI and other nondiscrimination authorities when offered by GDOT or any 

other regulatory agency. 

 Disseminate Title VI information to the public including in languages other than English, when 

necessary. 

 Develop a process to collect data related to race, gender and national origin of service area 

population to ensure low income, minorities, and other underserved groups are included and not 

discriminated against. 

 Implement procedures for the prompt processing of Title VI complaints. 

 

 

50



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit 2-2 

2.1 First Time Applicant Requirements 

 

Putnam county Transit is not a first time applicant for FTA/GDOT funding. The following is a summary of 

Putnam County current and pending federal and state funding.  

Current and Pending GDOT Funding 

1.T006374, 7/01/20 to 6/30/21 $382,562.00; Pending T007174, 7/01/21 to 6/3/22 $138,650.00 

and State $5,645.55 

During the previous three years, Georgia Department of Transportation did complete a Title VI compliance 

review of Putnam County Transit. Putnam County Transit has not been found to be in noncompliance with 

any civil rights requirements.  

The following is a summary of the compliance review.  

a. Date of the compliance review 
06/20/2019 

b. The purpose or reason for the review 
FTA 5311 Program – Compliance Review 

c. Agency or organization that performed the review 
Georgia Department of Transportation’s Division of Intermodal 

d. Summary of the finding and recommendations of the review 
None 

e. Report on the status of the findings and recommendations 
N/A 

f. Current status of the compliance review 
In compliance 

 

FTA Circular 4702.1B, Chapter III, Paragraph 3: Entities applying for FTA funding for the first time shall 

provide information regarding their Title VI compliance history if they have previously received funding 

from another Federal agency. 

 

FTA Circular 4702.1B, Chapter III, Paragraph 2: Every application for financial assistance from FTA 

must be accompanied by an assurance that the applicant will carry out the program in compliance 

with the Title VI regulations. 

 

51



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit 2-3 

 

2.2 Annual Certifications and Assurances 

In accordance with 49 CFR Section 21.7(a), every application for financial assistance from FTA must be 

accompanied by an assurance that the applicant will carry out the program in compliance with Title VI 

regulations. This requirement shall be fulfilled when the applicant/recipient submits its annual 

certifications and assurances. Primary recipients will collect Title VI assurances from sub-recipients prior 

to passing through FTA funds.  

Putnam County Transit will remain in compliance with this requirement by annual submission of 

certifications and assurances as required by GDOT.  

2.3 Title VI Plan Concurrence and Adoption 

Concurrence letter to be inserted upon receipt. 

The last Title VI Plan received GDOT concurrence on July 20, 2019. The Plan was approved and adopted 

by Putnam County Board of Commissioners during a meeting held on July 5, 2019.  A copy of the meeting 

minutes and GDOT concurrence letter is included in Appendix C.  

 

 

52



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit 3-1 

3.0 Title VI Notice to the Public 

Notice to Public 

Recipients must notify the public of its rights under Title VI and include the notice and where it is posted 

in the Title VI Plan. The notice must include: 

 A statement that the agency operates programs without regard to race, color and national origin 

 A description of the procedures members of the public should follow in order to request additional 

information on the grantee’s nondiscrimination obligations 

 A description of the procedure members of the public should follow in order to file a discrimination 

complaint against the grantee 

A sample of the notice is included in Appendix D of this Plan. The sample notice should be translated into 

other languages, as necessary. 

3.1 Notice Posting Locations 

 Notice to Public will be posted at many locations to apprise the public of Putnam County Transit 

obligations under Title VI and to inform them of the protections afforded them under Title VI. At a 

minimum, the notice will be posted in public areas of Putnam County Transit office(s) including the 

reception desk and meeting rooms, and on the Putnam County Transit website at 

https://www.putnamcountyga.us/transit/page/rights-under-title-vi. 

Additionally, Putnam County Transit will post the notice at stations, stops and on transit vehicles.  

Notice is included in Appendix D of this Plan along with any translated versions of the notice, as necessary.  

 

53

https://www.putnamcountyga.us/transit/page/rights-under-title-vi


Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit 4-1 

4.0 Title VI Procedures and Compliance  

 

4.1 Complaint Procedure 

Any person who believes he or she has been discriminated against on the basis of race, color or national 

origin by Putnam County Transit may file a Title VI complaint by completing and submitting the agency’s 

Title VI Complaint Form (refer to Appendix E). Putnam County Transit investigates complaints received no 

more than 180 days after the alleged incident. Putnam County Transit will process complaints that are 

complete.  

Once the complaint is received, Putnam County Transit will review it to determine if our office has 

jurisdiction. The complainant will receive an acknowledgement letter informing him/her whether the 

complaint will be investigated by our office.  

Putnam County Transit has ninety (90) days to investigate the complaint. If more information is needed 

to resolve the case, Putnam County Transit may contact the complainant. The complainant has ten (10) 

business days from the date of the letter to send requested information to the investigator assigned to 

the case. If the investigator is not contacted by the complainant or does not receive the additional 

information within ten (10) business days, Putnam County Transit can administratively close the case. A 

case can also be administratively closed if the complainant no longer wishes to pursue their case.  

After the investigator reviews the complaint, she/he will issue one of two letters to the complainant: a 

closure letter or a letter of finding (LOF). A closure letter summarizes the allegations and states that there 

was not a Title VI violation and that the case will be closed. A LOF summarizes the allegations and the 

interviews regarding the alleged incident, and explains whether any disciplinary action, additional training 

of the staff member or other action will occur. If the complainant wishes to appeal the decision, she/he 

has seven (7) days to do so from the time he/she receives the closure letter or the LOF.  

The complaint procedure will be made available to the public https://www.putnamcountyga.us ). 

  

4.2 Complaint Form 

A copy of the complaint form in English and Spanish is provided in Appendix E and on 

http://www.putnamcountyga.us ).  

 

FTA Circular 4702.1B, Chapter III, Paragraph 6: All recipients shall develop procedures for investigating 

and tracking Title VI complaints filed aginst them and make their procedures for filing a complaint 

available to member of the public.   

 

54

https://www.putnamcountyga.us/
http://www.putnamcountyga.us/


Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit 4-2 

4.3 Record Retention and Reporting Policy  

FTA requires that all direct and primary recipients (GDOT) document their compliance by submitting a 

Title VI Plan to their FTA regional civil rights officer once every three (3) years. Putnam County Transit will 

submit Title VI Plans to GDOT for concurrence on an annual basis or any time a major change in the Plan 

occurs.  

 Compliance records and all Title VI related documents will be retained for a minimum of three (3) years 

and reported to the primary recipient annually.  

4.4 Sub-recipient Assistance and Monitoring 

Putnam County Transit System does not have any sub-recipients to provide monitoring and assistance to. 

As a sub-recipient to GDOT, Putnam County Transit utilizes the sub-recipient assistance and monitoring 

provided by GDOT, as needed.  In the future, if Your Transit System has sub-recipients, it will provide 

assistance and monitoring as required by FTA Circular 4702.1B.] 

4.5 Sub recipients and Subcontractors  

Putnam County Transit is responsible for ensuring that subcontractors (TPOs) are in compliance with Title 

VI requirements. Sub recipients may not discriminate in the selection and retention of any subcontractors. 

Subcontractors also may not discriminate in the selection and retention of any subcontractors. Putnam 

County Transit, subcontractors, and/or TPOs may not discriminate in their employment practices in 

connection with federally assisted projects. Subcontractors and TPOs are not required to prepare or 

submit a Title VI Plan. However, the following nondiscrimination clauses will be inserted into every 

contract with contractors and subcontractors subject to Title VI regulations. 

Nondiscrimination Clauses 

During the performance of a contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees and successors in interest 

(hereinafter referred to as the “Contractor”) must agree to the following clauses: 

1. Compliance with Regulations: The Contractor shall comply with the Regulations relative to 

nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S. Department of Transportation (hereinafter, 

“USDOT”) Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21, as they may be amended from time to time, 

(hereinafter referred to as the Regulations), which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part 

of this Agreement. 

2. Nondiscrimination: The Contractor, with regard to the work performed during the contract, shall not 

discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, in the selection and retention of subcontractors, 

including procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The Contractor shall not participate either 

directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by section 21.5 of the Regulations, including 

employment practices when the contract covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations. 

3. Solicitations for Subcontractors, including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: In all solicitations 

made by the Contractor, either by competitive bidding or negotiation for work to be performed under a 

55



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit 4-3 

subcontract, including procurements of materials or leases of equipment; each potential subcontractor or 

supplier shall be notified by the Contractor of the subcontractor’s obligations under this contract and the 

Regulations relative to nondiscrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin.. 

4. Information and Reports: The Contractor shall provide all information and reports required by the 

Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records, accounts, 

other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the Georgia Department of 

Transportation and/or the Federal Transit Administration, to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such 

Regulations, orders and instructions. Where any information required of a Contractor is in the exclusive 

possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information the Contractor shall so certify to the 

Georgia Department of Transportation, and/or the Federal Transit Administration, as appropriate, and shall 

set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information. 

5. Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of the Contractor’s noncompliance with the nondiscrimination 

provisions of this contract, Putnam County Transit shall impose contract sanctions as appropriate, including, 

but not limited to:  

a. withholding of payments to the Contractor under the contract until the Contractor complies, 
and/or 

b. cancellation, termination or suspension of the contract, in whole or in part. 

6. Incorporation of Provisions: The Contractor shall include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (6) in 

every subcontract, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the 

Regulations, or directives issued pursuant thereto. The Contractor shall take such action with respect to any 

subcontract or procurement as the Putnam County Transit, Georgia Department of Transportation, and/or 

the Federal Transit Administration, may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions 

for noncompliance.  

 

 

E-Verify 

As a condition of your agreement with GDOT, vendors and contractors of Putnam County Transit shall 

utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of 

all new employees hired by the vendor or contractor while contracted with Putnam County Transit. 

Additionally, vendors and contractors shall expressly require any subcontractors performing work or 

providing services pursuant to work for Putnam County Transit shall likewise utilize the U.S. Department 

of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of all new employees hired by 

the subcontractor while working for Putnam County Transit.  

 

56



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit 5-4 

5.0 Title VI Investigations, Complaints, and Lawsuits 

 
In accordance with 49 CFR 21.9(b), Putnam County Transit must record and report any investigations, 

complaints, or lawsuits involving allegations of discrimination. The records of these events shall include 

the date the investigation, lawsuit, or complaint was filed; a summary of the allegations; the status of the 

investigation, lawsuit, or complaint; and actions taken by Putnam County Transit in response; and final 

findings related to the investigation, lawsuit, or complaint. The records for the previous three (3) years 

shall be included in the Title VI Plan when it is submitted to [GDOT].  

Putnam County Transit has had no investigations, complaints, or lawsuits involving allegations of 

discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin over the past three (3) years. A summary of 

these incidents is recorded in Table 1.  

Table 1: Summary of Investigations, Lawsuits, and Complaints 

 Date 

(Month, Day, 

Year) 

Summary 

(include basis of 

complaint: race, 

color, or national 

origin) 

Status Action(s) Taken 

Investigations n/a n/a n/a n/a 

1.     

2.     

Lawsuits n/a n/a n/a n/a 

1.     

2.     

Complaints n/a n/a n/a n/a 

1.     

2.     

 

 

 

 

FTA Circular 4702.1B, Chapter III, Paragraph 7: In order to comply with the reporting requirements of 

49 CFR 21.9(b), FTA requires all recipients to prepare and maintain a list of any of the following that 

allege discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin: active investigations….; lawsuits, 

and complaints naming the recipient. 

 

 

57



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit 6-1 

6.0 Public Participation Plan 

 
The Public Participation Plan (PPP) for Putnam County Transit was developed to ensure that all members 

of the public, including minorities and Limited English Proficient (LEP) populations, are encouraged to 

participate in the decision making process for Putnam County Transit.  Policy and service delivery decisions 

need to take into consideration community sentiment and public opinion based upon well-executed 

outreach efforts. The public outreach strategies described in the PPP are designed to provide the public 

with effective access to information about Putnam County Transit services and to provide a variety of 

efficient and convenient methods for receiving and considering public comment prior to implementing 

changes to services. The PPP is included as Appendix F to this Title VI Plan.  

Current Outreach Efforts 

Putnam County Transit is required to submit a summary of public outreach efforts made over the last 

three (3) years. The following is a list and short description of Putnam County Transit’s recent, current, 

and planned outreached activities.   

 Distribute pamphlets at various businesses 

 Spiritual wall calendar given out to the public annual 

 Setup informative booths at fair (Dairy Festival) 

 Bring a Friend Day for free 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FTA Circular 4702.1B, Chapter III, Paragraph 4.a.4: Every Title VI Plan shall include the following 

information: A public participation plan that includes an outreach plan to engage minority and limited 

English proficient populations, as well as a summary of outreach efforts made since the last Title VI 

Plan submission. A recipient’s targeted public participation plan of minority populations may be part 

of efforts that extend more broadly to include constituencies that are traditionally underserved, such 

as people with disabilities, low-income populations, and others.  

 

58



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit 7-1 

7.0 Language Assistance Plan 

 
Putnam County Transit operates a transit system within Putnam County. The Language Assistance Plan 

(LAP) has been prepared to address Putnam County Transit’s responsibilities as they relate to the needs 

of individuals with Limited English Proficiency (LEP). Individuals, who have a limited ability to read, write, 

speak or understand English are LEP. In Putnam County service area there are 380 residents or 1.8% who 

describe themselves as not able to communicate in English very well. Putnam County is federally 

mandated (Executive Order 13166) to take responsible steps to ensure meaningful access to the benefits, 

services, information and other important portions of its programs and activities for individuals who are 

LEP. Putnam County Transit has utilized the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) LEP Guidance 

Handbook and performed a four factor analysis to develop its LAP. The LAP is included in this Title VI Plan 

as Appendix G.  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FTA Circular 4702.1B, Chapter III, Paragraph 9: Recipients shall take reasonable steps to ensure 

meaningful access to benefits, services, information, and other important portions of their programs 

and activities for individuals who are limited English proficient (LEP).  

59



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit 9-1 

8.0 Transit Planning and Advisory Bodies  

 
Putnam County Transit does not have a transit-related committee or board, therefore this requirement 

does not apply.  

9.0 Title VI Equity Analysis 

 
Title 49 CFR, Appendix C, Section (3)(iv) requires that “the location of projects requiring land acquisition 

and the displacement of persons from their residences and business may not be determined on the basis 

of race, color, or national origin.” For purposes of this requirement, “facilities” does not include bus 

shelters, as they are considered transit amenities. It also does not include transit stations, power 

substations, or any other project evaluated by the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) process. 

Facilities included in the provision include, but are not limited to, storage facilities, maintenance facilities, 

operations centers, etc. In order to comply with the regulations, Putnam County Transit will ensure the 

following: 

1. Putnam County Transit will complete a Title VI equity analysis for any facility during the planning stage with 

regard to where a project is located or sited to ensure the location is selected without regard to race, color, 

or national origin. Putnam County Transit will engage in outreach to persons potentially impacted by the 

siting of the facility. The Title VI equity analysis must compare the equity impacts of various siting 

alternatives, and the analysis must occur before the selection of the preferred site.  

2. When evaluating locations of facilities, Putnam County Transit will give attention to other facilities with 

similar impacts in the area to determine if any cumulative adverse impacts might result. Analysis should be 

done at the Census tract or block group level where appropriate to ensure that proper perspective is given 

to localized impacts.  

3. If Putnam County Transit determines that the location of the project will result in a disparate impact on the 

basis of race, color, or national origin. Putnam County Transit may only locate the project in that location if 

there is a substantial legitimate justification for locating the project there, and where there are no 

FTA Circular 4702.1B, Chapter III, Paragraph 10: Recipients that have transit-related, non-elected 

planning boards, advisory councils or commitees, or similar committess, the membership of which is 

selected by the recipient, must provide a table depicting the racial breakdown of the membership of 

those committees, and a description of efforts made to encourage the participation of minorities on 

such committees.  

FTA Circular 4702.1B, Chapter III, Paragraph 4.a.8: If the recipient has constructed a facility, such as 

vehicle storage, maintenance facility, operation center, etc., the recipient shall include a copy of the 

Title VI equity analysis conducted during the planning stage with regard to the location of the 

facility.  

60



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit 9-2 

alternative locations that would have a less disparate impact on the basis of race, color, or national origin. 

Putnam County Transit must demonstrate and document how both tests are met. Putnam County Transit 

will consider and analyze alternatives to determine whether those alternatives would have less of a 

disparate impact on the basis of race, color, or national origin, and then implement the least discriminatory 

alternative.  

Putnam County Transit has not recently constructed any facilities, nor does it currently have any facilities 

in the planning stage. Therefore, Putnam County Transit does not have any Title VI Equity Analysis reports 

to submit with this Plan. Putnam County Transit will utilize the demographic maps included in Appendix I 

for future Title VI analysis. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

61



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit 10-1 

10.0 System-Wide Service Standards and Service Policies 

 
Putnam County Transit System is not a fixed route service provider.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          

FTA Circular 4702.1B, Chapter III, Paragraph 10: All fixed route transit providers shall set service 

standards and policies for each specific fixed route mode of service they provide.  

62



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit 11-2 

11.0 Appendices 

APPENDIX A FTA CIRCULAR 4702.1B REPORTING REQUIREMENTS FOR TRANSIT PROVIDERS 
APPENDIX B CURRENT SYSTEM DESCRIPTION 
APPENDIX C TITLE VI PLAN ADOPTION MEETING MINUTES AND GDOT CONCURRENCE LETTER 
APPENDIX D TITLE VI NOTICE TO PUBLIC 
APPENDIX E TITLE VI COMPLAINT FORM 
APPENDIX F PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PLAN 
APPENDIX G LANGUAGE ASSISTANCE PLAN 
APPENDIX H OPERATING AREA LANGUAGE DATA: PUTNAM COUNTY TRNSIT SERVICE AREA 
APPENDIX I DEMOGRAPHIC MAPS 
APPENDIX J TITLE VI EQUITY ANALYSIS 

63



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit A-1 

 

 

Appendix A 

FTA Circular 4702.1B Reporting 

Requirements for Transit Providers 

  

64



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit A-2 

Every three years, on a date determined by FTA, each recipient is required to submit the following 

information to the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) as part of their Title VI Program. Sub-recipients 

shall submit the information below to their primary recipient (the entity from whom the sub-recipient 

receives funds directly), on a schedule to be determined by the primary recipient. 

General Requirements 

All recipients must submit: 

 Title VI Notice to the Public, including a list of locations where the notice is posted 
 Title VI Complaint Procedures (i.e., instructions to the public regarding how to file a Title VI 

discrimination complaint) 
 Title VI Complaint Form 
 List of transit-related Title VI investigations, complaints, and lawsuits 
 Public Participation Plan, including information about outreach methods to engage minority 

and limited English proficient populations (LEP), as well as a summary of outreach efforts 
made since the last Title VI Program submission 

 Language Assistance Plan for providing language assistance to persons with limited English 
proficiency (LEP), based on the DOT LEP Guidance  

 A table depicting the membership of non-elected committees and councils, the membership 
of which is selected by the recipient, broken down by race, and a description of the process 
the agency uses to encourage the participation of minorities on such committees  

 Primary recipients shall include a description of how the agency monitors its sub-recipients 
for compliance with Title VI, and a schedule of sub-recipient Title VI Program submissions  

 A Title VI equity analysis if the recipient has constructed a facility, such as a vehicle storage 
facility, maintenance facility, operation center, etc. 

 A copy of board meeting minutes, resolution, or other appropriate documentation showing 
the board of directors or appropriate governing entity or official(s) responsible for policy 
decisions reviewed and approved the Title VI Program. For State DOTs, the appropriate 
governing entity is the State’s Secretary of Transportation or equivalent. The approval must 
occur prior to submission to FTA. 

 Additional information as specified in Chapters IV, V, and VI, depending on whether the 
recipient is a transit provider, a State, or a planning entity (see below) 

 

Requirements of Transit Providers 

All Fixed Route Transit Providers must submit: 

 All requirements set out in Chapter III (General Requirements) 
 Service standards 

o Vehicle load for each mode 
o Vehicle headway for each mode 
o On time performance for each mode 
o Service availability for each mode 

 Service policies 
o Transit Amenities for each mode 
o Vehicle Assignment for each mode 

65



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit A-3 

 

Transit Providers that operate 50 or more fixed route vehicles in peak service and are located in an 

Urbanized Area (UZA) of 200,000 or more people must submit: 

 Demographic and service profile maps and charts 
 Demographic ridership and travel patterns, collected by surveys  
 Results of their monitoring program and report, including evidence that the board or other 

governing entity or official(s) considered, was aware of the results, and approved the analysis 
 A description of the public engagement process for setting the “major service change policy,” 

disparate impact policy, and disproportionate burden policy 
 Results of service and/or fare equity analyses conducted since the last Title VI Program 

submission, including evidence that the board or other governing entity or official(s) 
considered, was aware of, and approved the results of the analysis 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

66



Title VI Plan 
 

   Putnam County Transit 
c B-1 

 

 

 

Appendix B 

Current System Description 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

67



Title VI Plan 
 

   Putnam County Transit 
c B-2 

 

Current System Description 

1. An overview of the organization including its mission, program goals and objectives. 
Putnam County Transit’s current and long-term focus as a transportation provider is on maintaining 

the best-coordinated transportation system possible for this community.  Our goal is to create a 

coordinated system with the objective of providing safe, reliable, timely and efficient transportation 

services to county residents.   

2. Organizational structure, type of operation, number of employees, service hours, staffing plan and 
safety and security plan. 
Putnam County Transit is a government agency. Our organization is made up of 4 full-time employees, 

1 part-time employee, and 0 volunteers. Our Transit Director is responsible for all of the day-to-day 

operations of our organization and reports directly to our County Manager.  Our BOC is committed to 

this program and has, therefore, incorporated our service within the County’s Public Transportation 

Program.  Transportation services are provided in accordance with the BCC’s approved Operations 

Manual/System Safety/Security Program and its Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan (TDSP).  

Our agency staffing plan is outlined in our 2011 Transit Development Plan (page 201) and 2012 

Operations Handbook (page 34).  We will continue to operate at previous year (2011) service hours 

averaging 84 total fleet service hours per day or approximately 25,200 annual service hours (assuming 

300 operating days). 

3. Indicate if your agency is a government authority. 
Putnam County Transit operates as a government agency. 

4. Who is responsible for insurance, training and management, and administration of the agency’s 
transportation programs? 
Putnam County Transit’s manager is responsible for training and management of our transportation 

program.  All safety sensitive employees are required to complete GDOT approved safety and security 

training course as part of their new hire orientation.  All new employees are also required to complete 

80 hours of on-the-road drivers training, which includes riding with a training driver, behind-the-wheel 

training, and training on proper use of wheelchair lifts and securement devices. The Transportation 

Services Manager is responsible for annual renewal of all liability insurance for both GDOT and agency 

owned vehicles, as well as vehicle registration renewal.  It is the Transportation Manager’s 

responsibility to administer all aspects of the transportation program and to control access and usage 

of all agency vehicles. 

5. Who provides vehicle maintenance and record keeping? 
Maintenance on all agency vehicles is provided by Putnam County Public Work/ Shop. Putnam County 

Public Work/ Shop employ only ASE certified technicians with experience in working on commercial 

passenger vehicles like the type our agency uses. All maintenance is performed using the Preventative 

Maintenance Plan, which conforms to the State Vehicle Maintenance Guidelines set forth in the GDOT 

Preventative Maintenance Guidelines document.  All vehicle files and driver files are kept on-site at 

68



Title VI Plan 
 

   Putnam County Transit 
c B-3 

our operations base located at 117 Putnam Dr. and are maintained by the Transit Director Dianne 

Pounds. All records are maintained and retained for a minimum of four (4) years. 

6. Number of current transportation related employees 
Our transportation department has a total of 5 employees that include: 3 full-time drivers, 1 part-time 

driver, 1 administrator and 0 support staff.   

7. Who will drive the vehicle, number of drivers, CDL certifications, etc.? 
Only transportation employees that have completed all of the required safety and drivers training 

requirements will be allowed to drive the agency vehicles.  

8. A detailed description of service routes and ridership numbers 
Transportation services provided through our program are available to general public.  Our service 

incorporates medical, nutrition, employment, shopping, training, employment, social and recreation. 

We provide a wide range of trip purposes that include: medical, nutrition, shopping, social service, 

training, employment, social and recreation.  Approximately 3% of the medical trips we provide are 

to medical facilities out of the county; therefore, our out of county services are directed to the nearby 

highway corridors that surround this community for optimum efficiency of trip duration and the most 

convenient route.  Currently, we use a variety of vehicles to provide passenger services.  Our fleet 

includes vans, modified vans, and buses.  Three of our vehicles are equipped for wheelchair service.  

We also have a contract provider that can supplement any services that we are unable to 

accommodate.  We prioritize grouping trips and multi-loading to the maximum extent possible.  We 

make 75 passenger trips per day on average and leverage our fleet resources so that all vehicles are 

used in a responsible manner to provide full coverage and retire the vehicles at a consistent pace and 

appropriate age and mileage. 

69



Title VI Plan 
 

  C-1 

 

 

Appendix C 

Title VI Plan Adoption Meeting Minutes 

and GDOT Concurrence Letter are placed 

at the beginning of Plan after section 2 
 

 

 

 

 

 

70



Title VI Plan 
 

  C-2 

 

71



Title VI Plan 
 

  C-3 

 

72



Title VI Plan 
 

  C-4 

 

73



Title VI Plan 
 

  C-5 

 
 

74



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit D-1 

 

 

Appendix D 

Title VI Notice to Public 

 

  

75



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit D-2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Notifying the Public of Rights Under Title VI 

 

                                   Putnam County Transit 

 Putnam County Transit operates its programs and services without regard to race, color, and 
national origin in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act. Any person who believes she 
or he has been aggrieved by any unlawful discriminatory practice under Title VI may file a 
complaint with Putnam County Transit Director.  

 For more information on Putnam County Transit’s civil rights program, and the procedures to 
file a complaint, contact706-485-6355, email dpounds@putnamcountyga.us or visit our 
administrative office at 117 Putnam Drive, Suite A Eatonton Georgia 31024 For more 
information visit www.putnamcountyga.us. 

 If information is needed in another language, contact 706-485-6355 

 Si se necesita información en otro idioma, comuníquese al 706-485-6355 

 

You may also file your complaint directly with the FTA  at:  Federal Transit Administration Office of 

Civil Rights Attention: Title VI Program Coordinator, East Building, 5th Floor - TCR 
1200 New Jersey Ave., SE, Washington, DC 20590  

 

76

mailto:dpounds@putnamcountyga.us
http://www.putnamcountyga.us/


Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit  E-1 

 

 

Appendix E 

Title VI Complaint Form 

 

  

77



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit  E-2 

Putnam County Transit 
Title VI Complaint Form 

 

Section I: 

Name: 

Address: 

Telephone (Home): Telephone (Work): 

Electronic Mail Address: 

Accessible Format 
Requirements? 

Large Print  Audio Tape  

TDD  Other  

Section II: 

Are you filing this complaint on your own behalf? Yes* No 

*If you answered "yes" to this question, go to Section III. 

If not, please supply the name and relationship of the person for whom 
you are complaining:  

 

Please explain why you have filed for a third party:  

     

Please confirm that you have obtained the permission of the aggrieved 
party if you are filing on behalf of a third party.  

Yes No 

Section III: 

I believe the discrimination I experienced was based on (check all that apply):  

[ ] Race [ ] Color [ ] National Origin                        

Date of Alleged Discrimination (Month, Day, Year):  __________ 

Explain as clearly as possible what happened and why you believe you were discriminated against. Describe all 

persons who were involved. Include the name and contact information of the person(s) who discriminated against 

you (if known) as well as names and contact information of any witnesses. If more space is needed, please use the 

back of this form. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Section IV 

Have you previously filed a Title VI complaint with this agency? Yes No 

 

 

78



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit  E-3 

Section V 

Have you filed this complaint with any other Federal, State, or local agency, or with any Federal or State court?  

[ ] Yes [ ] No 

If yes, check all that apply: 

[ ] Federal Agency:      

[ ] Federal Court   [ ] State Agency     

[ ] State Court   [ ] Local Agency     

Please provide information about a contact person at the agency/court where the complaint was filed.  

Name: 

Title: 

Agency: 

Address: 

Telephone: 

Section VI 

Name of agency complaint is against: 

Contact person:  

Title: 

Telephone number: 

 

You may attach any written materials or other information that you think is relevant to your complaint. 

Signature and date required below 

 

 

   _________________________________  ________________________ 
  Signature        Date 

 

Please submit this form in person at the address below, or mail this form to: 

Dianne Pounds, Transit Director 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite A 
Eatonton, GA  31024  

79



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit  F-1 

 

 

Appendix F 

Public Participation Plan (PPP)  

  

80



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit  F-2 

Introduction 

The Public Participation Plan (PPP) for Putnam County Transit was developed to ensure that all members 

of the public, including minorities and Limited English Proficient (LEP) populations, are encouraged to 

participate in the decision making process for Putnam County Transit.  Policy and service delivery decisions 

need to take into consideration community sentiment and public opinion based upon well-executed 

outreach efforts. The public outreach strategies described in the PPP are designed to provide the public 

with effective access to information about Putnam County Transit services and to provide a variety of 

efficient and convenient methods for receiving and considering public comment prior to implementing 

changes to services. Putnam County Transit also recognizes the importance of many types of stakeholders 

in the decision-making process, including other units of government, metropolitan area agencies, 

community based organizations, major employers, passengers and the general public, including low-

income, minority, LEP, and other traditionally underserved communities.  

Public Participation Goals 

The main goal of the PPP is to offer meaningful opportunities for all interested segments of the public, 

including, but not limited to, low-income, minority and LEP groups, to comment, about Putnam County 

Transit  and its operations. The goals for this PPP include: 

 Inclusion and Diversity: Putnam County Transit will proactively reach out and engage low-income, minority, 

and LEP populations for the Putnam County Transit service area so these groups will have an opportunity 

to participate.  

 Accessibility: All legal requirements for accessibility will be met. Efforts will be made to enhance the 

accessibility of the public’s participation – physically, geographically, temporally, linguistically and 

culturally.  

 Clarity and Relevance: Issues will be framed in public meetings in such a way that the significance and 

potential effect of proposed decisions is understood by participants. Proposed adjustments to fares or 

services will be described in language that is clear and easy to understand.  

 Responsive: Putnam County Transit will strive to respond to and incorporate, when possible, appropriate 

public comments into transportation decisions.  

 Tailored: Public participation methods will be tailored to match local and cultural preferences as much as 

possible. 

 Flexible: The public participation process will accommodate participation in a variety of ways and will be 

adjusted over time as needed.  

Public Participation Methods 

The methods of public participation included in this PPP were developed based upon best practices in 

conjunction with the needs and capabilities of Public County Transit. Putnam County Transit intends to 

achieve meaningful public participation by a variety of methods with respect to service and any changes 

to service.  

81



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit  F-3 

Putnam County Transit will conduct community meetings and listening sessions as appropriate with 

passengers, employers, community based organizations, and advisory committees to gather public input 

and distribute information about service quality, proposed changes or new service options. 

The public will be invited to provide feedback on the Putnam County Transit website 

(https://www.putnamcountyga.us) and all feedback on the site will be recorded and passed on to Putnam 

County Transit management. The public will also be able to call the Putnam County Transit office at 706-

485-6355 during its hours of operation. Feedback collected over the phone will be recorded and passed 

on to Putnam County Transit management. Formal customer surveys to measure performance, and 

listening sessions to solicit input, will be conducted periodically. The comments recorded as a part of these 

participation methods will be responded to as appropriate.  

Meeting formats will be tailored to help achieve specific public participation goals that vary by project or 

the nature of the proposed adjustment of service. Some meetings will be designed to share information 

and answer questions. Some will be designed to engage the public in providing input, establishing 

priorities, and helping to achieve consensus on a specific recommendation. Others will be conducted to 

solicit and consider public comments before implementing proposed adjustments to services. In each 

case, an agenda for  the meetings will be created that work to achieve the stated goals and is relevant to 

the subject and not overwhelming for the public.  

For all public meetings, the venue will be a facility that is accessible for persons with disabilities and, 

preferably, is served by public transit. If a series of meetings are scheduled on a topic, different meeting 

locations may be used, since no one location is usually convenient to all participants.  

For community meetings and other important information, Putnam County Transit will use a variety of 

means to make riders and citizens aware, including some or all of the following methods: 

 In-vehicle advertisement 

 Posters or flyers in transit center  

 Posting information on website 

 Press releases and briefings to media outlets 

 Multilingual flyer distribution to community based organizations, particularly those that target LEP 

population 

 Flyers and information distribution through various libraries and other civic locations that currently help 

distribute timetables and other information 

 Communications to relevant elected officials 

 Other methods required by local or state laws or agreements 

All information and materials communicating proposed and actual service adjustments will be provided 

in English and any other language that meets the “safe harbor” criteria.  

Public Hearing 

The agency is not required to perform public hearings. 

82



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit  F-4 

LCB Meetings  

 

 

 

83



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit G-1 

 

 

Appendix G 

Language Assistance Plan (LAP)  

84



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit G-2 

I. Introduction 

Putnam County Transit operates a transit system within Putnam County. The Language Assistance Plan 

(LAP) has been prepared to address Putnam County Transit’s responsibilities as they relate to the needs 

of individuals with Limited English Proficiency (LEP). Individuals, who have a limited ability to read, write, 

speak or understand English are LEP. In Putnam County service area there are 3801148 residents or 

1.656% who describe themselves as not able to communicate in English “very well” (Source: US Census 

2019 American Community Survey) (Source: US Census 2019 American Community Survey). Putnam 

County Transit is federally mandated (Executive Order 13166) to take responsible steps to ensure 

meaningful access to the benefits, services, information and other important portions of its programs and 

activities for individuals who are LEP. Putnam County Transit has utilized the U.S. Department of 

Transportation (USDOT) LEP Guidance Handbook and performed a four factor analysis to develop its LAP.  

The U.S. Department of Transportation Handbook, titled “Implementing the Department of 

Transportation’s Policy Guidance Concerning Recipients’ Responsibilities to Limited English Proficient 

(LEP) Persons: A Handbook for Public Transportation Providers, (April 13, 2007) “ (hereinafter 

“Handbook”), states that Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq., and its 

implementing regulations provide that no person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, 

or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected 

to discrimination under any program or activity that receives Federal financial assistance (Handbook, page 

5).  The Handbook further adds that Title VI prohibits conduct that has a disproportionate effect on LEP 

persons because such conduct constitutes national origin discrimination (Handbook, page 5).  

Executive Order 13166 of August 16, 2000 states that recipients of Federal financial assistance must take 

reasonable steps to ensure meaningful access to their programs and activities by LEP persons (Handbook, 

page 6).  Additionally, recipients should use the DOT LEP Guidance to determine how best to comply with 

statutory and regulatory obligations to provide meaningful access to the benefits, services, information 

and other important portions of their programs and activities for individuals who are LEP (Handbook, page 

6).   These provisions are included in FTA Circular 4702.1B in Paragraph 9 of Chapter III (pages III-6 to III-

9). 

For many LEP individuals, public transit is the principal transportation mode available. It is important for 

Putnam County Transit be able to communicate effectively with all of its riders. When Putnam County 

Transit is able to communicate effectively with all of its riders, the service provided is safer, more reliable, 

convenient, and accessible for all within its service area. Putnam County is committed to taking reasonable 

steps to ensure meaningful access for LEP individuals to this agency’s services in accordance with Title VI.  

This plan will demonstrate the efforts that Putnam County Transit undertakes to make its service 

accessible to all persons without regard to their ability to communicate in English. The plan addresses how 

services will be provided through general guidelines and procedures including the following: 

 Identification: Identifying LEP populations in service areas 

 Notification: Providing notice to LEP individuals about their right to language services 

 Interpretation: Offering timely interpretation to LEP individuals upon request 

 Translation: Providing timely translation of important documents 

85



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit G-3 

 Staffing: Identifying Putnam County Transit staff to assist LEP customers 

 Training: Providing training on LAP to responsible employees.  

II. Four Factor Analysis 

The analysis provided in this report has been developed to identify LEP population that may use Putnam 

County Transit services and identify needs for language assistance. This analysis is based on the “Four 

Factor Analysis” presented in the Implementing the Department of Transportation’s Policy Guidance 

Concerning Recipients’ Responsibilities to Limited English Proficient (LEP) Persons, dated April 13, 2007, 

which considers the following factors:  

1. The number and proportion of LEP persons in the service area who may be served or are likely to 

encounter a Putnam County Transit program, activity or service.  

2. The frequency with which LEP persons come in contact with Putnam County Transit programs, 

activities or services.  

3. The nature and importance of programs, activities or services provided by Putnam County Transit 

to the LEP population.  

4. The resources available to Putnam County Transit and overall costs to provide LEP assistance 

a. Factor 1: The Number and Proportion of LEP Persons Serviced or Encountered in the Eligible 
Service Population 

Of the 20,705 residents in the Putnam County service area 380 residents describe themselves 

as speaking English less than “very well”. People of Hispanic descent are the primary LEP 

persons likely to utilize Putnam County services. For the Putnam County Transit service area, 

the American Community Survey of the U.S. Census Bureau shows that among the area’s 

population 94% speak English “very well”. For groups who speak English, 1.65% speak, less 

than 1% speak “less than very well” and  and speak Spanish.  

Appendix H contains a table which lists the languages spoken at home by the ability to 

speak English for the population within the Putnam County Transit service area.  

b. Factor 2: The Frequency with which LEP Individuals Come into Contact with Your Programs, 
Activities, and Services 

The Federal guidance for this factor recommends that agencies should assess the frequency 

with which they have contact with LEP individuals from different language groups. The more 

frequent the contact with a particular LEP language group, the more likely enhanced services 

will be needed.  

Putnam County  has assessed the frequency with  which LEP individuals come in contact with 

the transit system. The methods utilized for this assessment  include analysis of Census data, 

examining phone inquiries, requests for translated documents, and staff survey. Phone 

inquiries and staff survey feedback indicated that dispatchers and drivers interact frequently 

with LEP persons. The majority of these interactions have occurred with LEP persons who 

86



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit G-4 

mainly spoke Spanish. Over the past 3 years, Putnam County Transit has had 2 requests for 

translated documents.  

c. Factor 3: The Nature and Importance of the Program, Activity, or Service Provided by the 
Recipient to People’s Lives 

Public transportation and regional transportation planning is vital to many people’s lives. 

According to the Department of Transportation’s Policy Guidance Concerning Recipient’s 

Responsibilites to LEP Persons, providing public transportation access to LEP persons is crucial. 

A LEP person’s inability to utilize public transportation effectively,  may adversely affect his or 

her ability to access health care, education, or employment. 

We will reach out to the LEP riders, using a Language Line Interpreter Service for other than 

English and Spanish individual. 

  

d. Factor 4: The Resources Available to the Recipient and Costs 

Putnam County Transit assessed its available resources that are currently being used, and those that could 

be used, to provide assistance to LEP populations.  These resources include the following: Language Line 

Personal Interpreter Service for the cost of $3.95 a minute, Brochures and Flyers: $55.00.  Putnam County 

Transit provides a reasonable degree of services for LEP populations in its service area.  

III. Language Assistance Plan 

In developing a Language Assistance Plan, FTA guidance recommends the analysis of the following five 

elements:  

1. Identifying LEP individuals who need language assistance 
2. Providing language assistance measures 
3. Training staff 
4. Providing notice to LEP persons 
5. Monitoring and updating the plan 

 
The five elements are addressed below.  

a. Element 1: Identifying LEP Individuals Who Need Language Assistance 

Federal guidance provides that there should be an assessment of the number or proportion 

of LEP individuals eligible to be serviced or encountered and the frequency of encounters 

pursuant to the first two factors in the four-factor analysis. 

Putnam County Transit has identified the number and proportion of LEP individuals within its 

service area using United States Census data (see Appendix H). As presented  earlier, 948.2% 

of the service area population speaks English only. The largest non-English spoken language 

in the service area is Spanish (4.1%4.1%). Of those whose primary spoken language is Spanish, 

approximately 0.70.7% identify themselves as speaking less than “very well”. Those residents 

87



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit G-5 

whose primary language is not English or Spanish and who identify themselves as speaking 

English less than “very well” account for less than 1% of the service area population. 

Putnam County may identify language assistance need for an LEP group by: 

1. Examining records to see if requests for language assistance have been received in 
the past, either at meetings or over the phone, to determine whether language 
assistance might be needed at future events or meetings.  

2. Having Census Bureau Language Identification Flashcards available at Putnam County 
Transit Meetings. This will assist Putnam County Transit in identifying language 
assistance needs for future events and meetings.  

3. Having Census Bureau Language Identification Flashcards on all transit vehicles to 
assist operators in identifying specific language assistance needs of passengers. If 
such individuals are encountered, vehicle operators will be instructed to obtain 
contact information to give to Putnam County Transit management to follow-up.  

4. Vehicle operators and front-line staff (i.e. Dispatchers, Transit Operation Supervisors, 
etc.) will be surveyed on their experience concerning any contacts with LEP persons 
during the previous year.  

 
b. Element 2: Language Assistance Measures 

Federal Guidance suggests that an effective LAP should include information about the ways 

in which language assistance will be provided. This refers to listing the different language 

services an agency provides and how staff can access this information.  

For this task Federal Guidance recommends that transit agencies consider developing 

strategies that train staff as to how to effectively deal with LEP individuals when they either 

call agency centers or otherwise interact with the agency.  

Putnam County Transit has undertaken the following actions to improve access to information 

and services for LEP individuals: 

1. Provide bilingual staff at community events, public hearings, and transit committee 
meetings. 

2. Survey transit drivers and other front-line staff annually on their experience 
concerning any contacts with LEP persons during the previous year. 

3. Provide Language Identification Flashcards onboard transit vehicles and in the 
Putnam County Transit offices.  

4. Include statements clarifying that being bilingual is preferred on bus driver 
recruitment flyers and onboard recruitment posters.  

5. When an interpreter is needed in person or on the telephone, staff will attempt to 
access language assistance services from a professional translation service or 
qualified community volunteers.  

 
Your Transit System will utilize the demographic maps provided in Appendix I in order to 
better provide the above efforts to the LEP persons within the service area.  

 

88



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit G-6 

c. Element 3: Training Staff 

Federal guidance states staff members of an agency should know their obligations to provide 

meaningful access to information and services for LEP persons and that all employees in public 

contact positions should be properly trained. 

Suggestions for implementing Element 3 of the Language Assistance Plan, involve: (1) 

identifying agency staff likely to come into contact with LEP individuals; (2) identifying existing 

staff training opportunities;  (3) providing regular re-training for staff dealing with LEP 

individual needs; and (4) designing and implementing LEP training for agency staff.  

In the case of Putnam County Transit the most important staff training is for Customer Service 

Representatives and transit drivers.   

The following training will be provided to Customer Service Representative: 

1. Information on Title VI Procedures and LEP responsibilities 
2. Use of Language Identification Flashcards 
3. Documentation of language assistance requests 
4. How to handle a potential Title VI/LEP complaint    

 
d. Element 4: Providing Note to LEP Persons 

Putnam County Transit will make Title VI information available in English and Spanish on the 

Agency’s website. Key documents are written in English and Spanish.  Notices are also posted 

in Putnam County Transit office lobby, on buses, and public places.  Additionally, when staff 

prepares a document or schedules a meeting, for which the target audience is expected to 

include LEP individuals, then documents, meeting notices, flyers, and agendas will be printed 

in an alternative language based on the known LEP population. 

e. Element 5: Monitoring and Updating the Plan 

The plan will be reviewed and updated on an ongoing basis. Updates will consider the 

following:  

 The number of documented LEP person contacts encountered annually  
 How the needs of LEP persons have been addressed 

 Determination of the current LEP population in the service area 

 Determination as to whether the need for translation services has changed   
 Determine whether Putnam County Transit financial resources are sufficient to fund 

language assistance resources needed 

 
Putnam County Transit understands the value that its service plays in the lives of individuals 

who rely on this service, and the importance of any measures undertaken to make the use of 

system easier. Putnam County Transit is open to suggestions from all sources, including 

customers, Putnam County Transit staff, other transportation agencies with similar 

experiences with LEP communities, and the general public, regarding additional methods to 

improve their accessibility to LEP communities. 

89



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit G-7 

IV. Safe Harbor Provision 

DOT has adopted the Department of Justice’s Safe Harbor Provision, which outlines circumstances that 

can provide a “safe harbor” for recipients regarding translation of written materials for LEP population. 

The Safe Harbor Provision stipulates that, if a recipient provides written translation of vital documents for 

each eligible LEP language group that constitutes five percent (5%) or 1,000 persons, whichever is less, of 

the total population of persons eligible to be served or likely to be affected or encountered, then such 

action will be considered strong evidence of compliance with the recipient’s written translation 

obligations. Translation of non-vital documents, if needed, can be provided orally. If there are fewer than 

50 persons in a language group that reaches the five percent (5%) trigger, the recipient is not required to 

translate vital written materials but should provide written notice in the primary language of the LEP 

language group of the right to receive competent oral interpretation of those written materials, free of 

cost. 

Putnam County Transit service area does not not have LEP populations which qualify for the Safe Harbor 

Provision. [As shown in Appendix H, Your Transit System does not have LEP groups which speak English 

less than “very well” which exceed either 5.0% or 1,000 person.]  

The Safe Harbor Provision applies to the translation of written documents only. They do not affect the 
requirement to provide meaningful access to LEP individuals through competent oral interpreters where 
oral language services are needed and are reasonable. Putnam County Transit may determine, based on 
the Four Factor Analysis, that even though a language group meets the threshold specified by the Safe 
Harbor Provision, written translation may not be an effective means to provide language assistance 
measures.  

 

90



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit H-1 

 

 

Appendix H 

Operating Area Language Data: 

Putnam County Transit Service Area 

  

91



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit H-2 

 

Language County  
Percent of Total County 

Population 

Total  Putnam County 20,705 
Speak only English 9,38019,380 94% 
Spanish 859859 4% 
  Speak English “very well” 709 3.4% 
  Speak English less than “very well” 150 0.6% 
Other Indo-European languages 331 1.5% 
  Speak English “very well” 130 0.5% 
  Speak English less than “very well” 201 1% 
Asian and Pacific Island languages 102 0.5% 
  Speak English “very well” 73 0.4% 
  Speak English less than “very well” 29 0.05% 
Other languages 33 0 
  Speak English “very well” 33 0 
  Speak English less than “very well” 0 0 

  

92



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit I-1 

 

 

Appendix I 

Demographic Maps 

  

93



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit I-2 

 

94



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit I-3 

 

95



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit I-4 

 

96



Title VI Plan 
 

     Putnam County Transit I-5 

 

 

97



 

 

 

 

Appendix J 

Title VI Equity Analysis 

 
Putnam County Transit does not have any recently constructed or planned facilities and have not 

performed Title Vl Equity Analysis. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



File Attachments for Item:

8. Authorization for Chairman to sign Letter of Support for Goodwill of Middle Georgia’s American 

Rescue Plan Act Grant Application (staff-CM)

183



From: James Stiff 
Sent: Tuesday, October 12, 2021 2:52 PM 
To: Billy Webster; Paul Van Haute 
Cc: Wendy Thompson 
Subject: Goodwill Letter of Support Requested 
 
Dear Billy and Paul: 
 
WE are beginning to apply for grants to help us complete the infrastructure phase of the Putnam County 
Goodwill – Helms College campus and ask you to please write a letter of support (template attached) for 
a 10/20 grant assembly targeted date. 
 
Goodwill of Middle Georgia and the CSRA is applying to the state of Georgia for American Rescue Plan 
Act funding to fast track capital expansion of its Helms College campus in Augusta/Lake Oconee. This 
project will help create jobs and prepare workers to meet current and future labor force needs, 
particularly in the hard-hit hospitality and tourism industries.  
  
We would greatly appreciate your letter of support for our application. The grant deadline is October 31, 
and I have attached a template letter for your convenience. If you can help with this, we would ask to 
have your letter in-hand by Wednesday, October 20.  
  
Thank you for your consideration. Please let me know if you have any questions or need additional 
information on the synergy between the Augusta and Eatonton campuses. 
 
In gratitude. 
 
Jim  
 

184

mailto:jstiff@goodwillworks.org
mailto:bwebster@putnamcountyga.us
mailto:pvanhaute@putnamcountyga.us
mailto:wthompson@goodwillworks.org


October 19, 2021 
 
 
On behalf of the Putnam County Board of Commissioners, I am pleased to offer Goodwill of 
Middle Georgia and the Central Savannah River Area this letter of support for the State Fiscal 
Recovery Act grant as it works in partnership to increase employment opportunities for 
Georgians facing economic hardship due to the COVID-19 pandemic.  
 
We currently are collaborating with Goodwill to provide employment and economic 
development opportunities that will fuel post-pandemc recovery, particularly for our region’s 
crucial hospitality and tourism industries. Putnam County has long suffered from a dearth of 
adequate motel/hotel accommodations and associated hospitality venues.   As a result, the 
County has lost some very important business prospects and opportunities.   We feel, working 
in concert with Goodwill, we can finally start to overcome these hospitality and economic 
deficiencies in our county.  
 
If funding is awarded, we look forward to working in partnership with Goodwill to transform 
lives and provide support in the following areas: 
 

 Supporting industry networking opportunities 

 Participating in strategic planning efforts to identify current and future workforce needs 

 Creating new economic energy in the region 
 
It is our distinct pleasure to participate in this project to expand career education and 
workforce development services in communities and industries in Georgia that have 
experienced negative economic impacts as a result of COVID-19. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Billy Webster 
Chairman 

185



7 

Summary of Campaign Initiatives 

Phase I Investment:  $2,823,600 

Land Acquisition  
This component will secure the acreage needed for Phase I and Phase II building projects.  

Retail Training Store 

Program Components: Applied Learning Business Enterprise 

Capital Components: 15,000 Square-Foot Retail Building with Donation Drive-Through 

Regional Career Center 
Enhancing our system of community-based Career Centers will give low-income individuals ready access 
to the College’s educational programs, career counseling and job placement services. 

Program Components: Career Assessment; Counseling; Job Placement 

Capital Components: Signage, Technology and Distance Learning Equipment 

Edgar’s Bakehouse 
This profit-generating enterprise will provide students with relevant skills training opportunities and on-
the-job experience to complement their academic pursuits. 

Program Components:  Applied Learning Business Enterprise 

Capital Components: Restaurant and Landscape Development 

Phase II Investment:  $4,926,000 

School of Health Services 
The School of Health Services will help address the Lake Region’s real and growing demand for workers 
in middle- skills healthcare career fields, and professionals trained in personal care services and partner with 
area healthcare providers to incorporate a clinical applied learning business enterprise. 

Program Components: Home Health Care; Medical Massage Therapy; Other Programs TBD 

Capital Components: Classrooms; Training Labs; Equipment 

School of Hospitality 

Program Components: Certificate of Culinary Arts; other Diploma and Degree Programs in Culinary Arts, 
Agriculture, and Resort and Event Management 

Capital Components: Classrooms; Training Labs; Equipment; Eco-Tourism Teaching Farm; Conference and 
Retreat Center with Edgar’s restaurant applied learning business venue

186



File Attachments for Item:

9. Authorization for Chairman to sign Intergovernmental Agreement with the Hospital Authority (staff-

CM & Fin)

187



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
 

 

THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT, (this “Agreement”) is made and 

entered into as of the ___  day of _______________, 2021, by and between the PUTNAM 

COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia (the 

“Authority”), and PUTNAM COUNTY, GEORGIA, a political subdivision of the State of 

Georgia (the “County”). 

 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

 

WHEREAS, Article IX, Section III, Paragraph I (a) of the Georgia Constitution (the 

“Intergovernmental Contracts Clause”) authorizes, among other things, any county, municipality 

or other political subdivision of the State to contract, for a period not exceeding fifty years, with 

another county, municipality or political subdivision or with any other public agency, public 

corporation or public authority; and 

 

WHEREAS, the County has received funding through the American Rescue Plan Act1, 

adopted March 11, 2021, pursuant to Section 603, the Coronavirus Local Fiscal Recovery Fund 

(“Fiscal Recovery Funds”); and  

 

WHEREAS, the Secretary of the Treasury has issued the interim final rule to implement 

the Fund2, which directs recipients of Fiscal Recovery Funds may use such funds to provide 

premium pay to eligible workers performing essential work during the COVID-19 public health 

emergency or to provide grants to third-party employers with eligible workers performing 

essential work3; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Authority owns and operates all hospital facilities within the County and 

employees several eligible workers who served and continue to perform essential work directly 

for the benefit of the citizens of the County during to COVID-19 pandemic, and has identified 

____ employees currently employed by the Authority who have provided such services; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Authority provides a broad range of services and programming designed 

and implemented to contain COVID-19, including vaccination programs, medical care, testing, 

contact tracing, support for isolation or quarantine, support for vulnerable populations to access 

medical or public health services, public health surveillance, enforcement of public health orders, 

public communication efforts, enhancement to health care capacity, purchases of personal 

protective equipment, support for prevention, mitigation, or other services in congregate living 

facilities, enhancement of public health data systems, and other public health responses; and 

 

                                                 
1 42 U.S.C. 801 et seq. 
2 31 CFR Part 35 
3 Section 603(g)(2) defines eligible worker to mean ‘those workers needed to maintain continuity of operations of 

essential critical infrastructure sectors and additional sectors as each Governor of a State or territory, or each Tribal 

government, may designate as critical to protect the health and well-being of the residents of their State, territory, or 

Tribal Government.” 

188



- 2 - 

WHEREAS, the County desires to provide certain funds from the County’s allotment of 

Fiscal Recovery Funds to the Authority to provide premium payment, as contemplated within the 

interim final rule adopted by the Secretary of the Treasury, to employees of the Authority who 

are eligible workers; and  

 

WHEREAS, the County desires to provide certain funds from the County’s allotment of 

Fiscal Recovery Funds to the Authority to provide funding for those Eligible Public Health Uses 

established by the interim final rule of the Secretary of the Treasury. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and undertakings as 

hereinafter set forth and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 

which are hereby acknowledged, the Authority and the County do hereby agree as follows: 

 

ARTICLE 1. 

 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

This Agreement shall become effective upon its execution and shall continue in effect 

until the end of the second full fiscal year in which the Authority has fully distributed all Fiscal 

Recovery Funds allocated by the County to Authority or upon the event of closure or transfer of 

ownership of Putnam General Hospital, whichever occurs first, but shall not remain effective for 

a period of time greater than 50 years from execution of this Agreement. 

 

ARTICLE 2. 

 

FISCAL RECOVERY FUNDS 

(a)  The County shall allocate _____________________ to the Authority to provide 

premium pay to Authority employees who are otherwise eligible as established by then 

applicable laws, regulations, and/or rules adopted by the federal government.  The County shall 

allocate ____________ to the Authority as payment for other eligible expenditures under the 

American Rescue Plan Act as established by then applicable laws, regulations, and/or rules 

adopted by the federal government.  

 

(b) Any funds allocated pursuant to this Agreement by the County to the Authority 

shall be expended by the Authority on or prior to September 30, 2022.  Any funds allocated 

pursuant to this Agreement that are not expended by Authority prior to September 30, 2022 shall 

be returned to County.   

 

(c) The Authority shall have the exclusive responsibility and obligation to expend 

Fiscal Recovery Funds on eligible expenditures established by the American Rescue Plan Act.  

By execution of this Agreement, the Authority expressly agrees as part of this Agreement and as 

a condition of allocation of such funding that it shall defend, save harmless and indemnify the 

County from any claims, demands, suits, attorneys’ fees, judgments and/or liability of any kind 

or nature whether groundless or otherwise, arising directly or indirectly from use or payment of 

Fiscal Recovery Funds.  This indemnification and hold harmless shall continue after Authority’s 

use of such funds, but only insofar as it relates back to claims, demands, suits, attorneys’ fees, 

189



- 3 - 

judgments and/or liability arising either directly or indirectly from use of the same.  The 

Authority further expressly agrees to save harmless and indemnify the County from any penalty 

or sanction levied by any competent entity or otherwise incurred upon the County from the 

misappropriation of Fiscal Recovery Funds, to include, but not be limited to civil penalties, 

interest, and the costs of defending such sanction, including attorneys’ fees.   

 

ARTICLE 3. 

 

RECORD KEEPING AND AUDIT PROCEDURES; RECONCILING 

(a) The Authority shall keep detailed records of the Fiscal Recovery Funds proceeds 

received from the County, and the Authority shall keep detailed records of all allocations and 

otherwise abide by generally accepted accounting procedures.  The County shall have the right to 

review and be provided copies of all such records upon request to the Authority. 

 

(b) The Authority shall provide the County with an annual non-audited reconciliation 

of allocation of Fiscal Recovery Funds and with all costs associated therewith no later than 

October 15, 2022. 

 

ARTICLE 4. 

ASSIGNABILITY 

 

 This Agreement is not assignable to any other party without the express adoption of a 

resolution assigning the same by both parties to this Agreement.   

 

ARTICLE 5. 

 

MISCELLANEOUS 

(a) Any controversy arising under this Agreement shall be heard within the Superior 

Court of Putnam County. 

 

(b) Should any phrase, clause, sentence or paragraph herein contained be held invalid 

or unconstitutional, it shall in nowise affect the remaining provisions of this Agreement, which 

said provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

(c) This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be 

an original but all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

 

(d) This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 

the State of Georgia. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, acting by and through their duly authorized 

officers, have caused this Agreement to be executed in multiple counterparts under seals as of the 

day and year first above written. 

190



- 4 - 

 

 

 

 

 

PUTNAM COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

 

 

By:  

Billy Webster, Chairman 

 

(SEAL) 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

  

Clerk 

 

 

 

      PUTNAM COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

      

 

 

By:  

_____________, Chairman 

 

(SEAL) 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

  

Clerk 

 

191



File Attachments for Item:

10. Approval of Changes to the Putnam County Financial Policy (BW and staff-Fin)

192



Page 1

PUTNAM COUNTY
RESOLUTION 10192021

CHANGES TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY FINANCIAL POLICY-PURCHASING
AND TRAVEL

WHEREAS, the Putnam County Financial Policy was adopted on November 16,
2010; and

WHEREAS, the Putnam County Financial Policy was revised on December 17, 2013;
March 7, 2014; May 20, 2014; August 28, 2020.

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Commissioners of the Putnam
County, in the State of Georgia, as follows: the Putnam County Financial Policy shall be
revised as follows:

SECTION 1: AMENDMENT “5.70 Purchasing” of the Putnam County
Policies & Procedures is hereby amended as follows:

A M E N D M E N T

5.70 Purchasing

Purchasing policies help to ensure that tax dollars are spent in the most economical way. The
County uses competitive means for the purchase of all products and services whenever
possible and believes in open, fair competition. The purchasing levels in this policy are subject
to periodic review and may be changed by the Board of Commissioners based on inflation and
other factors. The County Manager is designated as the Chief Purchasing Officer. The
Purchasing Officer shall ensure that purchases are made within the thresholds listed below.
Ethics: Putnam County officers, employees and public body members may not have an
interest in a contract with the County, unless the interest is disclosed, and that person is recused
from participating in the decision process. Further, Putnam County officers, employees or
public body members with an interest in a contract may not attempt to influence any County
employee or decision maker who has influence or decision-making power over the contract.
The purchase of equipment, material, or supplies for personal use is strictly prohibited. The use
of County Credit Cards, purchase orders, or reimbursable cash for personal use is unlawful,
and is considered tax evasion, fraud or misrepresenting the County in a business transaction.
All such instances will be reported to the proper authorities. Timely Submittal of Documents:
Invoices and supporting documentation such as purchase orders and quotes (as applicable)
should be submitted to the Finance Department weekly so they can be paid in a timely manner.

193



Page 2

Usually the Finance Department will issue checks every Thursday for all authorized invoices
received by 11:00 a.m. the preceding Wednesday. If an invoice is submitted more than 30 days
after the invoice date, the department head should provide a written explanation on the invoice.
In cases in which there isn’t an invoice, an Expense Report should be completed explaining
the expense, along with an itemized receipt, and it should be signed by the department head.
For example, an employee may request reimbursement for using their personal cell phone for
County business. Purchase Orders: Purchases must be approved prior to placing the order or
making the purchase as evidenced by a purchase order except for the following:

● Purchases totaling $3,000 or less
● Utilities such as electricity, water, sewer, phone, cable
● Payments made pursuant to written contracts
● Postage
● Insurance payments
● Employee payroll, benefits and employee tax payments
● Roading paving materials for normal maintenance of county property.

Under no circumstances should a purchase order request be split to avoid limits.

194

https://s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/municipalcodeonline.com-new/putnam/ADC/files/ordinance/1601233351_Travel%20Expense Report 01-01-20.pdf


Page 3

Purchasing Approval: Department Heads may approve purchases up to and including
$3,000. The County Manager must sign all purchase orders for purchases over $3,000.
Purchases under $10,000 and under do not require quotes or a bid process, however, all due
diligence should be taken to assure that the County gets the best value for each item it
purchases regardless of the amount of the purchase. Purchases over $10,000 to $75,000 shall
require a minimum of three quotations from prospective vendors. Quotes need not be sealed
and may be submitted in hard copy, email, or via facsimile to the Department Head or County
Manager. Purchases greater than $75,000 shall require a formal (advertised) competitive sealed
bid. Advertisements for sealed bids will appear in the legal organ of the County for at least two
weeks with seven (7) calendar days between advertisements and the bid date being at least
seven (7) calendar days following the second advertisement. All formal competitive sealed bids
will have a public bid opening at the date, time and place to appear in the advertisements and
the bid will be recorded for the public record. Sealed bid shall not be opened without the
specified witness. The witness and person opening the bid shall be documented as well as the
date opened. All bids will be opened at the same time. The recorded bid sheet and bids shall be
provided to the County Manager to provide to the Board of Commissioners at the next regular
board meeting. The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to reject any and all bids and
waive technicalities and informalities. Under no circumstances should purchases be split to
avoid bid limits. If there is any doubt as to which level of purchase authorization should be
used, the next higher category should be used to avoid negating the bids. Purchasing under
State Contract is authorized in lieu of competitive bidding of local purchase when it is to the
economic advantage of the County. The same purchasing thresholds as outlined in this policy
apply to State contracts. Public Works Construction Projects: Public works constructions
projects estimated to exceed $100,000 require a sealed bid process. The project must be
advertised in the legal organ of the county a minimum of two times in accordance with
O.C.G.A. § 36-91-20. The first advertisement occurring at least four weeks prior to the
opening of the sealed bids. The second advertisement shall follow no earlier than two weeks
from the first advertisement. The request shall also be posted on the County’s website and the
Georgia Procurement Registry. Road construction projects estimated to exceed $100,000 must
be awarded via sealed bid. The project must be advertised at least once a week for two weeks
in the legal organ of the County per O.C.G.A. § 32-4-65. The first advertisement shall be two
weeks prior to the bid opening and the second to follow one week after the first. Projects will
also be posted on the County’s web page and the Georgia Procurement Registry.

Summary of Authorization levels

195



Page 4

Dollar
Amount

Procedure Documentation Approval

$0 - $3,000

Practice due diligence to
ensure the County receives the
best price for the product or
service

Invoice Department Head

$3,000.01 -
$10,000

Due diligence and written
quotes are encouraged

Invoice & Purchase
Order

County Manager &
Department Head

$10,000.01 to
$75,000

Due diligence and at least
three written quotes must be
obtained

Invoice, Purchase Order
& 3 Written Quotes

County Manager &
Department Head

Over $75,000 Formal Bid Process Required
Invoice & Bid
Documentation

Board of
Commissioners

Centralized Purchases and Price Agreements: Whenever it is in the best interest of Putnam
County, centralized purchasing will be utilized for common items used by multiple
departments. When purchasing items approved for centralized purchasing, Department Heads
and Elected Officials will submit their requests to the Purchasing Officer or designee. The
Purchasing Officer or designee will place the order and notify Department Heads when items
have been received. Goods or services used by one or more departments on a regular and
continuing basis may be purchased under a contract covering a specified extended period of
time, at an established price for such goods or services which shall be valid for the duration of
the contract period. Purchasing Cards: The Putnam County Purchasing Card Policy was
adopted on September 15, 2009 and amended December 15, 2015. The purchasing card policy
is hereby incorporated in PCPP 5.80.

SECTION 2: AMENDMENT “5.90 Travel” of the Putnam County Policies
& Procedures is hereby amended as follows:

A M E N D M E N T

5.90 Travel

Official Travel Defined: Official travel is when an employee is on official County business
which requires attendance at events and functions requiring travel outside the county. Travel
shall be approved annually as part of the budget process. Travel not included in the budget
must be authorized by a majority vote of the Board of Commissioners, prior to the incurring of
any costs associated with such travel.

196



Page 5

The County will not honor reimbursement request for meals, expenses, mileage or other costs
deemed unofficial or for travel within the county, except as provided in Act 702 (HB No.
1818) of the Georgia General Assembly as approved April 1, 1996. Costs associated with the
use of personal vehicles for travel within Putnam County are not reimbursable unless
authorized by contract.

When an employee uses their personal vehicle for official travel, the rate of reimbursement is
the rate set by the United States General Services Administration per resolution of the Board of
Commissioners 1/15/02. All requests for reimbursement of cost associated with the use of
personal vehicles while on Official County business outside of the county must be documented
on an itemized Expense Report in PCPP 5.70.010.

Board of Commissioners: Reimbursement for official travel by the Chairman or any other
member of the Board of Commissioners is strictly limited to the following:

● Educational and training opportunities offered by ACCG and other training
opportunities necessary for the orderly conduct of the business of Putnam
Countythrough its Lifelong Learning Academy Training Program which is comprised
of three components: Core Certification, Specialty Certificates, and, for those
commissioners taking office on or after Jan 1, 2013, Continuing Education Annual
Requirements. Travel to any ACCG event where no ACCG Lifelong Learning
Academy certification training is being provided is not eligible for reimbursement and

● Appointments to boards, authorities, committees as made by the Chairman of the
Board of Commissioners, by the Board of commissioners, by legislative statue, or
directly associated with the conduct of the business of Putnam County and

● Approved budgetary amounts for Per Diem, Travel, and Education, unless a
Commissioner has not yet received enough credits to become a certified county
commissioner. In those instances, a case-by-case approval for additional amounts
beyond the budgeted amounts may be approved by the full Commission if presented
prior to the expense of such overage.

Board of Commissioners will be paid as provided in Act 702 of the Georgia General
Assembly as approved April 1, 1996.

The County shall approve and/or reimburse travel expenses incurred during the performance of
official duties outside the county subject to the following limitations and provisions.

Expenses incurred by family members or other persons accompanying the official traveler are
not reimbursable. Official travelers must make their own arrangements for individuals
accompanying them and pay for all expenses incurred personally.

Lodging: Lodging is tax-exempt in most cases if sales tax and motel/hotel tax-exempt form is
presented at the time of check-in. The County will not reimburse for taxes paid due to the
failure to present exemption forms. Receipts for lodging shall accompany a properly executed
Expense Report in PCPP 5.70.010 and be submitted to the Finance Department within seven
(7) business days of completion of trip.

197



Page 6

Meals: The Daily Meal Rate is set at a maximum of $50 per day for days with an overnight
stay. If one or two meals are purchased for day travel, the rates on the chart below shall apply.
These meal rates include tips to wait staff for meal service or room service charges. Tips are
limited to 15% of the bill. Tipping over the amount even if you stay below the maximum
amounts will not be allowed. Tips will be limited to 15% of the bill. For overnight stay, the
daily meal rate may be averaged within the same trip. Here are two examples:

Two Day Trip (overnight stay)- Spent $35 day one & $60 day two - Approved (did not exceed
$100) / Four Day Trip (three nights) - the maximum may not exceed $200 ($50x4)

The standard meal allowance rates are as follows:

Eligible Meals Daily Allowance

Breakfast $10.00

Lunch $15.00

Dinner $25.00

Alcoholic beverages are not reimbursable.

Itemized receipts are required for all expenses and shall accompany a properly executed
Expense Report.

Constitutional Officers and their employees are not required to present receipts; they may claim
the maximum daily meal rate. In all instances, an Expense Report must be completed within
seven (7) business days from completion of the trip.

Travel Advances: County employees that are not issued a County credit card may receive an
advance for anticipated expenses while on official travel. In all cases where a Travel Advance
is issued, the traveler will settle their account with the Finance Department within seven (7)
business days of the completion of travel by providing receipts and/or proper documentation
for incurred expenses. The traveler shall return the balance of advanced funds minus expenses
detailed on an approved Expense Report and supported by receipts. Any exceptions to this
must be reviewed and approved by the County Manager.

Review and Approval of Travel Expenses: Travel expenses require review and proper
approval of the Expense Report before submission to the Finance Department.

198



Page 7

Travel expenses and P Card charges by employees (below Department Head level) will be
audited and approved by the Department Head. Charges by Department Heads will be audited
and approved by the County Manager. Charges by the County Manager, Chairman, and all
District Commissioners will be audited by the Chairman after and approved, other than their
own, by the first two commissioners available prior to submission to the Finance Department.
Charges by the Chairman will be provided to the Vice-Chairman for audit after submission to
the Finance Department. Any dispute will be settled by a review and vote by the Board of
Commissioners.

SECTION 3: EFFECTIVE DATE This Resolution shall be in full force and
effect from October 19, 2021 and after the required approval and publication according to law.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS _______________________________.

 

Billy Webster, Chairman, Putnam
County

Lynn Butterworth, County Clerk
Putnam County

199



File Attachments for Item:

11. Discussion and possible action concerning Electric Vehicle Charging Station (BW)

200



State Fiscal Recovery Funds Application 
 

1.  Proposal Name 
Putnam County Electric Vehicle Charging Station 
 
 

2.  Proposal Summary 
These funds will be used to install both a Level 2 and a Level 3 Electric Vehicle Charging 
Station at Putnam County’s Administration Building.  Most of the County’s non-judicial 
business is conducted at this facility including the business (services) associated with the 
County Health Department and the Board of Elections.   
 
Estimated cost for this project is $70,000 which includes the cost of the charging 
stations and necessary installation.  The county is prepared to match XX% of the cost of 
the project; therefore, the amount of federal funds requested is $XX,000. 
 
This electric vehicle charging station will help serve the ever-growing number of electric 
vehicles, both publicly and county owned, that reside in or pass through the county.  
The convenience offered by this location, because of its center of county business plus 
nearness (less than ¼ mile) to U.S. Highway 441 and 129 and State Route 24, makes it a 
perfect place for such a charging station. 
 

3.  Description of the Issue 
Covid-19 has impacted all facet of our county government, but the county heath 
department and the functions of our Board of Elections have been especially impacted. 
All county advanced voting now takes place only at the Administration Building.  All 
County supported Covid-19 testing and vaccinations are onsite at our County 
Administration facility.  It is not a stretch to say the County Administration Building is 
now the most visited facility in the county. 
 
Presently, there are only two electric vehicle charging stations in the county with only 
one within the ten-mile radius of our Administration Building.  Over 5000 vehicles pass 
by the Administration Building on U.S. Highway 441 each day with another estimated 
200 vehicles per day, either employees, government, or visitors, who would be potential 
customers for this service, use the Administration Building parking lot. 
 
Putnam County has a resident population of just over 22,000 with a peak summertime 
population estimated at over 26,000. 
 
 
 
 

201



 

4. Project Design and Implementation 
The objective of this effort is to provide the public and government electric vehicles 
access to an electric vehicle charging facility.  To provide this needed service, we 
propose to install one dual port Level 2 and one Level 3 charging station at the rear of 
our paved parking lot.  This would accommodate three vehicles being charged 
simultaneously.  
 

5. Capabilities and Competencies 
Overall responsibility for the successful completion of this project will be the County 
Manager.   He will be assisted by the Director of our Public Works Department with 
engineering assistance from our consulting engineer.  These county employees have 
overseen numerous successful county projects totaling millions of dollars.   
 
Financial oversight of the project and appropriate financial reporting will be the 
responsibility of our County Finance Department.  At present, this Department oversees 
a General Fund Budget of over $21M. 
 

6. Plan for Collecting the Data Required   
The County Manager will be responsible for the collection of data to be reported in 
accordance with the Treasury Department’s rules for Compliance and Reporting. 
 

7. Budget 
Our budget contemplates all expenses necessary to acquire and install on County 
property one dual port Level 2 and one Level 3 Electric Vehicle Charging Station.  A 
detailed breakdown of our budget follows: 
 -Engineering                                      $4,000 
 -Level 2 Chargers                              $7,000  
 -Level 3 Charger                                $50,000 
 -Site Prep                                            $2,000 
 -Electrical Installation                       $7,000 
  Total                                      $70,000 
 

8. Match Funds 
Total cost of the project is estimated to be $70,000.  Putnam County is prepared to 
match XX% of the total estimated cost.  As a result of this county match, the amount of 

State Fiscal Recovery funds being requested is:   $XX,000. 
 

9. Supporting Documentation 
Attached hereto are the following documents: 
1.  Future Energy Article, “How much do EV Charging Stations Cost?” 

 

202


	Top
	Item #5.	2021-10-19 BOC Conditional Use-McAllister
	McAllister Info
	McAllister 10-7-21 Map
	McAllister Application Old Phoenix-Ward Chapel Cond. Use
	McAllister 104002LV
	McAllister Future Land Use 104002

	Item #7.	2021-10-19 BOC Consent Agenda
	DRAFT 10-01-21 BOC Minutes
	DRAFT 10-01-21 BOC Work Session Minutes
	DRAFT 10-12-21 BOC Joint Called Meeting Minutes
	GDOT Actual Cost Agreement
	GDOT subrecipient Title VI Plan 2021 Putnam County Transit 9.30.21
	GDOT 5311 Grant Letter
	FY23 5311 Total Application

	Item #8.	2021-10-19 BOC Goodwill ARPA Grant
	Goodwill email
	Goodwill Letter of Support
	Goodwill Campaign Initiatives_Lake Oconee Campus Expansion

	Item #9.	2021-10-19 BOC IGA Hospital
	211011 Proposed IGA County - Hospital Authority re ARP Funds

	Item #10.	2021-10-19 BOC Financial Policy
	Res_10192021 Purchasing and Travel

	Item #11.	2021-10-19 BOC Electric Vehicle
	Charging Station Application-Oct 21

	Bottom

